
November 10, 2008 
 

City of Milton-Freewater 
City Council Minutes 
 
The Council of the City of Milton-Freewater met in regular session Monday, November 10, 
2008 at 7:00 p.m. in the Albee Room of the Library. 
 
The following members were present:  Mayor Lewis Key, Councilors Orrin Lyon, Ed 
Chesnut, Keith Woods, Debbie Kelley, Brad Humbert and Steve Irving.  
 
Staff members present were: City Manager Linda Hall, Electric Superintendent Mike Charlo, 
Public Works Assistant/Project Aide Krista Oliver, Parks and Recreation Lead Craig Rouse 
and City Recorder Leanne Steadman. 
 
Citizens present were: Pat Thomson, Adam Sherman, Donna Sherman, Katie Sherman, Merle 
Sherman, Sandy Marcel and Jeannie Rouse. 
 
Press member Melanie Hall of the Valley Herald was present.  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS: 
The consent calendar items consisted of executive session, study session and regular council 
meeting minutes from October 27, 2008.  Special session minutes from November 6, 2008 
and accounts payable from October 22 – November 5, 2008.  
 
Councilor Chesnut motioned to approve the consent calendar items.  Councilor Kelley 
seconded the motion which passed unanimously.    
 
PRESENTATION:  
 
RECOGNITION TO THE PROPERTY OWNERS OF 608 S. COLUMBIA AND 103 
SW 6TH AVE. FOR THE “SPRUCE-UP/CLEAN-UP” PROGRAM 
Councilor Humbert presented the second “Spruce-Up/Clean-Up” award to Todd and Josefina 
Maddocks who own 608 S. Columbia and 103 SW 6th Ave.  They have done a great deal of 
home improvements to spruce up their property.  Mr. and Mrs. Maddocks were not present to 
accept the award. 
 
RECOGNITION – NOVEMBER EMPLOYEE OF THE MONTH  
Councilor Irving presented the November Employee of the Month Award to Craig Rouse.  
Mr. Rouse has been with the city for fourteen (14) years and was recently promoted to the 
lead position of the park crews and has been making great strides in improving the 
maintenance tasks and upkeep of the parks and recreation facilities.  Mr. Rouse is known as a 
person who takes great pride in his work.  His carpentry skills, expert painting skill, his work 
with repairs and improvements to city buildings and facilities are very apparent and receive a 
great deal of positive attention.  Councilor Irving, on behalf of the Mayor and the other 
councilors, presented Mr. Rouse with a $100 check to show their appreciation.   
 
 BUSINESS ITEMS: 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2107, AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE TO EURUS COMMUNITY 
BENEFIT PLAN GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,000 
Public Works Assistant/Project Aide Krista Oliver reported that the Joe Humbert Aquatic 
Center completed its thirteenth (13th) operating season.  She said the past year was very 



 2

successful with approximately eighty-two (82) days of operation and over twenty-five 
thousand (25,000) patrons, which did not include season pass holders.  Ms. Oliver said as the 
facility continues to age, some of the fixtures and furniture were starting to show wear and 
tear.  She said due to the aquatic center being funded through the general fund, capital 
projects were limited so she took advantage of applying for the local Eurus Community 
Benefit Plan Grant.  She said she applied for four thousand dollars ($4,000) to match what 
was set aside in the budget to replace some of the umbrellas and lounge chairs.  Ms. Oliver 
said the majority of the grant money from Eurus would be used to purchase the fabric for the 
umbrellas.  The completion date for replacing the equipment is May 2009.  Staff’s 
recommendation is to authorize signature to the Eurus Grant Acceptance Agreement and to 
authorize the supplemental budget due to the unforeseen receipt of the grant award.  
 
Councilor Chesnut motioned to adopt Resolution No. 2107, Resolution Authorizing Signature 
to Eurus Grant Acceptance Agreement in the amount of $4,000.  Councilor Lyon seconded 
the motion which passed unanimously. 
 
City Manager Hall said that Ms. Oliver single handedly sought out the grant and she 
commended her for a great job.  Ms. Hall asked Mayor Key to explain where the Eurus Grant 
funds arrive from due to his involvement with the program. 
 
Mayor Key said the funds come from the wind machines on Combine Hill’s; currently there 
are forty nine (49) turbines, which they get a percentage of the income.  He said there was a 
grant previously awarded to the City for the replacement of the dish washer and steam table at 
the Community Building.  There have been other grants awarded to replace windows at the 
Senior Center and upgrades to the Junior Show grounds.  He said they strive to combine their 
sources with others to make a bigger grant award.  There were two (2) applications received 
this year that were awarded.  Mayor Key said there was another phase of wind machines that 
were going to be installed on Combine Hill’s which would total another sixty (60) wind 
turbines.  He said the funds will continue for a period of ten (10) years.  He said the grant 
funds are available for the benefit of the community that was contained within the Milton-
Freewater school district.   
 
 RESOLUTION NO. 2108, SUPPLEMENTAL BUDGET DUE TO UNFORESEEN 
RECEIPT OF EURUS GRANT AWARD OF $4,000 
Councilor Humbert motion to adopt Resolution No. 2108, Resolution Supplementing Fiscal 
Year 2009 Budget by Receipt of $4,000 in Grant Funds.  Councilor Kelley seconded the 
motion which passed unanimously.   
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2109 AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE TO A DISCRETIONARY 
INVESTMENT AGREEMENT WITH VISION CAPITAL MANAGEMENT, INC.  
City Manager Linda Hall reported that the City had worked with a representative from Seattle 
NW Securities, Don Leek.  Mr. Leek was very helpful in drafting an investment policy that 
replaced the city’s thirteen (13) year old plan.  Ms. Hall said Mr. Leek had been a very good 
advisor for the city in the past and would like to continue to work with him.  Mr. Leek is now 
with Vision Capital Management Incorporated.  Staff’s recommendation was to have Mr. 
Leek continue to be the investment advisor and keep the city’s investments with Fidelity 
Investments.   
 
Councilor Kelley motion to adopt Resolution No. 2109, Resolution to Enter into a 
Discretionary Investment Advisory Agreement with Vision Capital Management 
Incorporated.  Councilor Humbert seconded the motion which passed unanimously.   



 3

RESOLUTION NO. 2110 AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE TO THE BONNEVILLE 
POWER ADMINISTRATION POWER SALES  
Electric Superintendent Mike Charlo reported that the proposed power sales contract was for 
twenty (20) years.  He said the contract would start immediately upon signature but that the 
power delivery would not start until fall of 2011.  The reason for the delay is because 
Bonneville Power Administration (BPA) works on getting all the contracts signed by 
December 1st and then they go out and start to procure the power that all the customers had 
signed up for.  He summarized the changes to include that all BPA utility customers would be 
establishing a high water mark.  The high water mark would be established by the utilities 
power sales in 2010.  Once that mark has been established then that is what the utility would 
be guaranteed at a certain rate which will be called Tier 1 Power Rate.  As the utility load 
grows past the high water mark then the utility must purchase power at a more expensive rate 
which will be called the Tier 2 Power Rate.  The Tier 2 Power Rate can be purchased through 
BPA which is the safe and viable way or it can be purchased from a private industry which 
could be more expensive.  The decision on the purchase of power sales surpassing the high 
water mark (Tier 1 Power) must be communicated to BPA by November 1, 2009.  The reason 
why BPA was requiring utilities to establish a high water mark was due to BPA not wanting 
to pay for load growth.  By having a high water mark then the utilities that are significantly 
growing would be required to pay for that growth and not all the other utilities.  Mr. Charlo 
said that BPA is projecting a rate increase of eight to ten (8% – 10%) percent in 2009 which is 
related to Energy Northwest/Hanford expenses due to issues with fish.  The first year of the 
proposed contract (2010) BPA projects a rate increase of three to five (3% - 5%) percent.  He 
said that there were several different choices for the purchase of Tier 2 power with BPA for 
example a long term rate or short term.  He said the city would not be locked in for the whole 
twenty (20) years at a Tier 2 rate and that it could be changed every three to five (3 – 5) years 
at certain times of the contract.   
 
Councilor Woods asked if the new contract would affect the ability to sell power back to 
BPA. 
 
Mr. Charlo said no.  He said the city gets a certain share of power from Grant County Dams 
and then immediately sells that power to BPA.  BPA pays the city the current preferred 
priority firm (PF) rate.  Then the city purchases one hundred (100%) percent of the city’s 
needs from BPA.   
 
Councilor Irving asked if a business would come to Milton-Freewater and the Tier 2 rate was 
passed onto that business, would the rate still be less than Pacific Power & Light’s rate. 
 
Mr. Charlo said yes it would probably be less. 
 
Councilor Kelley motion to adopt Resolution No. 2110, Resolution Authorizing Signature to 
the Bonneville Power Administration Twenty (20) Year Power Sales Contract.  Councilor 
Chesnut seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 
 
Manager Hall complimented Mr. Charlo for the great job he does with all the contracts he 
keeps track of and that he is well thought of in the electric industry with him being the current 
Oregon Municipal Electric Utilities President. 
 
 
 



 4

RESOLUTION NO. 2111 AUTHORIZING SIGNATURE TO AMENDMENT #1 OF 
SUB-GRANT AGREEMENT WITH HORIZON PROJECT FOR ADMINISTRATION 
OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND 
City Manager Linda Hall reported that the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
was for $750,000 and its purpose was to award low interest loans to start a new business or 
expand a current business within Milton-Freewater’s electric service boundaries with the 
creation of new jobs.  She said the CDBG committee has had one (1) application but it did not 
qualify for the program.  Ms. Hall said the city sub-contracts with Horizon Project Inc. to 
administer the grant.  She said when the application was initially submitted to the state the 
city wrote in to secure five thousand ($5,000) dollars to reimburse staff’s time of reviewing 
the draw down requests from the sub-grantee.  When the state representative, Del Little, 
audited the program recently he said the $5,000 could only be drawn down by the addition of 
a new employee or the extension of hours to a current employee.  Ms. Hall said the cost to the 
city of meeting the guidelines would far surpass the $5,000 draw down so it was decided to 
allow the sub-grantee (Horizon Project Inc.) to be able to draw down the money since they 
would qualify with no added expense to them.  Staff’s recommendation is to allow Horizon 
Project to draw down the $5,000.   
 
Councilor Humbert motion to adopt Resolution No. 2111, Resolution Authorizing Signature 
to Amendment #1 of Sub-Grant Agreement with Horizon Project for Administration of 
Community Development Block Grant Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund.  
Councilor Chesnut seconded the motion which passed unanimously. 
 
MANAGER’S REPORT: 
City Manager Linda Hall reported that the November 24, 2008 council meeting would be 
cancelled.  The Milton-Freewater School Board Superintendent Marilyn McBride set another 
date, November 18, 2008, to meet with the city councilors.  Councilor Humbert said he had 
another obligation on that evening.  Council consensus was to try for another day so all 
councilors could be present for the joint meeting.  Ms. Hall said she would relay that to Ms. 
McBride.  Ms. Hall said she wanted to thank all the voters for passing the Milton-Freewater 
Local Option Tax which helps support the transportation program.  She said there would be a 
welcome home ceremony for military troops that were coming home at the Milton-Freewater 
Armory starting at 2:30 p.m. on Sunday, November 16, 2008.  The new recording system for 
the council chambers should be installed by December or January. 
 
Councilor Woods asked what the status was of the Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA). 
 
Manager Hall said at the last EOA meeting the committee did an inventory of industrial land.  
She said by doing the inventory it would allow the EOA committee to look at what was 
available.  She said the public comment period would be January or February 2009.  
 
COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Councilor Chesnut said council had received an email that summarized the meeting with 
Umatilla County Planning and Commissioners on the topic of them taking up the Goal 5 
Resource Amendment and under their own admission they opted to not take action on that.  
He said it would be left to the process of the application that Richard Jolly had submitted.   
 
Manager Hall said Councilor Chesnut did a wonderful job of representing all the council at 
the Umatilla County Planning meeting on November 6, 2008.   
 



 5

Councilor Woods read a letter of resignation to the council.  He stated it had been a privilege 
for him to serve as a councilor for the City of Milton-Freewater.  Councilor Woods said due 
to an unforeseen change in his family status he would not be able to serve as a councilor in his 
newly elected term beginning 2009.  He respectfully asked for the acceptance of his 
resignation effective at the end of the current term.  He thanked all his constituents, 
administration and staff for supporting him throughout the years.  Councilor Woods said he 
would be relocating out of the area. 
 
Manager Hall said she had suggested to Councilor Woods to continue as a councilor until 
such time he had a specific moving date.     
 
Councilor Woods agreed to do so. 
 
There being no further business, council adjourned at 7:46 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
       ___________________________  

Lewis S. Key, Mayor 


